
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Friday, 7 October 2022. 

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Constitution 
Committee  

     
 

 

Monday, 17 October 2022 at 10.30 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Mark Whittington (Chairman) 
Councillor Breda-Rae Griffin (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor David Bellamy, Councillor Paul Fellows, Councillor Susan Sandall, 
Councillor Ian Stokes and Vacancy (Alliance SK) 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, via the  
SKDC YouTube Channel 

 

 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 13) 

4.   Updates on Actions from the previous meeting 
There were no actions from the previous meeting. Recommendations had been 
made to Council and these were considered at the Council meeting on 25 July 
2022.   
 

 

5.   Honorary Alderman and Alderwoman Protocol 
This report provides the Constitution Committee with an opportunity to consider 
a draft protocol for the appointment of Honorary Aldermen and Alderwomen – a 
clear process for bestowing such an honour.  
 
 
 
 
 

(Pages 15 - 20) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/user/SouthKestevenDC


 

6.   Proposed amendment to the Planning Procedure Rules and any 
other amendments to the Council’s Constitution 
This report provides the Constitution Committee with an opportunity to consider 
revisions to the Council’s Constitution. 
 

(Pages 21 - 33) 

7.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

 



 

Meeting of the 
Constitution Committee 
 
Monday, 18 July 2022, 10.30 am 

  
 

 

Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Mark Whittington (Chairman) 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Susan Sandall 
Councillor Ian Stokes 
Councillor Adam Stokes 

 

 
Officers  
 
Assistant Director of Planning, Emma Whittaker 
Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer, Graham Watts 
Democratic Officer, Lucy Bonshor 
 

 
1. Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bellamy, Fellows and Griffin. 

 
Councillor Griffin was substituted by Councillor Adam Stokes. 

 
2. Disclosure of interests 

 
None disclosed. 

 
3. Minutes of the meeting held on 16 May 2022 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 16 May 2022 were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED. 

 
4. Updates on Actions from the previous meeting 

 
Actions from the previous meeting had been completed. 

 
5. Amendments to the Council's Constitution 

 
The report before Members considered proposed amendments to the Constitution 
following the adoption of the revised Constitution at the Annual Council meeting 
held on 26 May 2022.   
 
Councillors Baxter and Cleaver had proposed amendments to the Constitution at 
the Full Council meeting.  The Chairman of the Constitution Committee offered to 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

give due consideration to the amendments at the next meeting of the Constitution 
Committee and the amendments were withdrawn at the Council meeting. 

 
During a development session for Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Committees, the 
terminology associated with the person presiding the meeting was highlighted and 
how this was reflected in the Constitution, on agendas and minutes.  It was agreed 
that consideration should be given to whether this was still appropriate, from a 
gender-neutral perspective.  Also, the recent variation of an Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee date had drawn attention to the fact that the wording associated with the 
Chairman’s powers in relation to rescheduling a meeting needed more clarity. 

 
The Committee discussed the use of the word Chairman. The Chairman of the 
Committee felt that this was an issue that could be brought before an informal 
session of the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Committees which met quarterly for 
informal discussions.    It was questioned whether this was a public meeting to 
which other Members could attend, to which the Chairman replied that it was not.  
The sessions considered best practice arrangements and the Chairman of the 
Constitution Committee indicated that the terminology within the Constitution could 
be an issue for this group of Members to consider. 
 
It was suggested that the Councillor presiding each meeting should indicate how 
they were to be addressed, Mr Chairman, Madam Chairman, Chair etc. and 
Members of that Committee should respect that decision.  A discussion followed on 
the topic and examples given of instances where changes had been made to titles 
such as “refuse operatives”, rather than “bin men”.  Some Members felt that the use 
of the word Chairman should remain and that whoever presided at a meeting 
should be given the opportunity to state how they wished to be addressed.    

 
A proposal was made that the person presiding the meeting should be referred to 
as Chair as this was gender inclusive, however the proposal failed to receive a 
seconder. 
 
A further proposal was made that the “Chairman” should be referred to as the 
“person presiding” the meeting. This proposal received a seconder and on being 
put to the vote there was an equality of votes for and against the proposal, the 
Chairman used his casting vote in favour of the proposal.  A short discussion 
followed on whether this also referred to the section in the Constitution relating to 
the Chairman of the Council but it was confirmed that this was only in respect of 
Committee meetings. 
 
Recommendation to Council 
 
That the word Chairman be replaced within the Constitution with Person 
Presiding in respect of Committee meetings. 
 
The Committee then discussed the wording around the variation of dates for 
Committees and the suggested amendments to Paragraph 7 of the Council 
Procedure Rules. Reference was made to the next meeting of the Companies 
Committee that had been postponed, even though the Member felt that there was 
business that could be discussed. 

4



 

The proposed amendments to the Council Procedure Rules as contained within the 
report in respect of cancellation, postponement or rescheduling of meetings was 
proposed, seconded and AGREED. 
 
Recommendation to Council 
 
That Paragraph 7 of the Council Procedure Rules are amended as follows: 

- The title of paragraph 7 be renamed ‘Notice and Summons to 

Meetings and Cancellation, Postponement or Rescheduling of 

Meetings’ 

- The inclusion of the words ‘cancel or reschedule’ with the word 

‘postpone’ in paragraph 7.4 of the Council Procedure Rules  

- The inclusion of the words ‘cancelled or rescheduled’ with the word 

‘postponed’ in paragraph 7.5 of the Council Procedure Rules. 

 
(10:55 – 10:58 a short adjournment took place) 

 
The Committee then discussed the proposed amendments put forward by 
Councillor Cleaver which were in respect of the Planning Procedure Rules and the 
Planning Scheme of Delegation.  Each amendment was taken individually. 
 
The Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer informed the 
Committee that the paragraph numbering used by Councillor Cleaver was out 
slightly and the paragraphs were 6.2 and 6.3 not 6.3 and 6.4 as shown in Appendix 
A and he briefly outlined the proposed amendments put forward by Councillor 
Cleaver. 

 
Amendment 1: Planning Procedure Rules 
 
Paragraph 6.2 - The order of speaking at Planning Committee when considering 
applications. 
 
The amendment proposed by Councillor Cleaver was to change the order of 
speakers at a Planning Committee particularly in respect of when a District Ward 
Councillor spoke on a planning application. Currently they spoke first and Councillor 
Cleaver proposed that they were the second to last to speak.  The proposed 
change would mean that Parish and Town Council representatives would speak 
third.   The Assistant Director of Planning stated that the applicant and agent were 
the last to speak as they had the right to reply to what had been said previously. 
 
Members discussed the proposed amendment.  Some Members felt strongly that 
the District Ward Councillor should be allowed to speak first whilst others felt that it 
depended upon the planning application being discussed.  It was suggested that 
the Chairman could exercise discretion as to the speaker’s order, but it was felt that 
clarity of the speaker’s order was needed especially as the Planning Committee 
was the most public facing of all Committees. 
 

5



 

Amendment 1 was proposed but did not receive a seconder. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED to keep the running order as it was 
currently shown in the Constitution. 
 
Recommendation to Council  
 
That the running order of speakers for the Planning Committee remain as 
currently shown at 6.2 in the Constitution. 

 
Amendment 2: Planning Procedure Rules 
 
Insert a new paragraph to define the relevant ward Councillor as ‘those wards 
which fall inside or adjacent to the boundary of the planning application in question’ 
 
The Assistant Director of Planning stated that the proposed amendment did not 
define the meaning of adjacent and queried, for example, where this meant within 
two metres, five metres, the whole ward.  She referred to paragraph 5.1 and the 
Chairman’s discretion to allow Members to speak at Committee. 
 
One Member felt that the request had been made due to circumstances with a 
planning application in Stamford.  A discussion followed with Members giving 
examples of wards and their boundaries in respect of planning applications. It was 
noted that there was nothing to stop a Councillor attending a meeting of the 
Planning Committee as a member of the public rather than a Councillor.  Members 
did not object to the proposed amendment but felt that the wording was too ‘woolly’ 
and needed to be tightened up.  It was therefore proposed to amend the wording as 
follows: 
 
To define the relevant ward Councillor as ‘those wards which fall inside or adjacent 
to the planning application in question’.  The proposal was seconded and on being 
put to the vote AGREED. 
 
Recommendation to Council  
 
Insert a new paragraph within the Planning Procedure Rules to define the 
relevant ward Councillor as ‘those wards which fall inside or adjacent to the 
planning application’. 
 
Amendment 3: Planning Procedure Rules 
 
Paragraph 6.3 - That the three minutes speaking be changed to four minutes 
 
The proposed amendment was to allow all speakers to have four minutes speaking 
time.  Previously Councillors had five minutes and the public three minutes, 
however this was amended when meetings were carried out remotely so that 
everyone had three minutes.   One Member stated that although Members were 
allowed five minutes previously, it had not been written down.  

 

6



 

A discussion followed and the Assistant Director of Planning confirmed that three 
minutes was typical for most Local Authorities.  The time should be used to 
highlight the salient points in respect of a planning application only and longer 
Committee meetings were tiring for everyone involved. 
 
Members felt that three minutes was sufficient time and it was proposed, seconded 
and AGREED to keep all speakers to three minutes.   
 
Recommendation to Council 
 
That Paragraph 6.3 in relation to speaking at Planning Committee meetings 
be kept to three minutes.   
 
Councillor Baxter asked for his vote against the proposal to be recorded. 
 
Amendment 4: Planning Scheme of Delegation 
 
Paragraph 1 - delete the first sentence and replace with "Any application for 
planning permission, approval of Reserved Matters, Conservation Area Consent, 
tree works approval or Listed Building Consent where a Councillor from the relevant 
or an adjoining ward, or a minimum of any three councillors, or any member of the 
Planning Committee has requested, in writing within 21 days of being notified of the 
application, that the application be considered by Committee. 
 
The proposed amendment was discussed with Members putting their views 
forward.  One Member felt that the amendment made it more accessible to 
Members to call a decision in and he was happy to propose the amendment and felt 
that the changes that had been made during the Constitution review in respect of 
the call-in of planning applications had not been necessary. 

 
Further discussion followed on the sizes of the different wards within the district and 
where their boundaries were situated with some abutting completely different 
authorities.  It was felt that there were sufficient mechanisms in place to allow the 
call-in of planning applications and conversations should be encouraged between 
Ward Councillors and Planning Officers if it was felt that an application should go to 
Committee.  
 
The proposal for the amendment did not receive a seconder. 
Further discussion on Councillors not on the Committee being able to speak at a 
Planning Committee, it was noted that speaking was at the Chairman’s discretion 
as at paragraph 5.1 of the Planning Procedure Rules. 
 
The Assistant Director of Planning stated that for an application to go before a 
Planning Committee there had to be a material planning reason and it was down to 
the language used.  There were clear procedures in place to call-in an application 
and the Assistant Director of Planning also had discretion in respect of applications. 

 
Members felt that no change was necessary to the current Planning Scheme of 
Delegation and it was proposed, seconded and AGREED that the current process 
remained. 

7



 

Recommendation to Council  
 
That no change was required to paragraph 1 in the Planning Scheme of 
Delegation. 
 
Councillor Baxter asked for his vote against the recommendation to be recorded. 
 
Amendment 5: Planning Scheme of Delegation 
 
Insert a new paragraph 2 and renumber beneath accordingly: 
“Any application for Major Development as defined in the Town and Country 
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010” 
 
The Assistant Director of Planning gave a definition of a major development; a 
development of 10 or more dwellings or a commercial development where the floor 
space to be created was 1,000 square metres or more.    
 
Applications under this definition would go to Committee by default and as the 
Constitution was drafted any that had financial obligations.    The Assistant Director 
of Planning stated that in her professional opinion there was no need to amend the 
Constitution in respect of major developments.  
 
Examples of the type of major developments that would not go were given by the 
Assistant Director of Planning. 
 
Councillor Cleaver’s amendment was proposed but did not receive a seconder. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED that no new paragraph was necessary. 

 
Recommendation to Council 
 
No new paragraph was required to be inserted in the Planning Scheme of 
Delegation. 
 
Councillor Baxter asked for his vote against the recommendation to be recorded. 
 
(A short adjournment took place between 11:52 – 11:57) 
 
The Committee then went through individually the amendments proposed by 
Councillor Baxter. 
 
Amendment 1: Public Open Forum 
 
Insert after paragraph 11.9 reinstatement of the paragraph from the previous 
Constitution titled “Supplementary question”. 
 
Before Members considered the amendments, the Chairman read out a statement 
he had received from Mr Phil Gadd in respect of public speaking at Full Council 
meetings and supplementary questions making reference to the issues that had 
happened at the Riverside Flats and the reasons why questions had been asked at 

8



 

Full Council.  The Chairman stated that he would forward the letter to the Assistant 
Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer and that the Chairman would 
respond to Mr Gadd. 

 
The Member who had submitted the amendments stated that the Council need to 
be more transparent and open to questions, and able to hold Councillors to account 
rather than less able to do so.  Questions at Council in the past had been on items 
on the agenda and reference was made to a recent meeting of Council and the 
questions that had been asked that did not have any relevance to an agenda item, 
although the Councillor who had been asked the question had responded to it.  It 
was felt that an answer to a question could be incomplete and the Member felt that 
it was fair for the member of the public to ask the person answering the question to 
clarify their answer. 
 
Discussion then followed.  Although notice of questions had to be given prior to a 
meeting, supplementary questions did not and often these had nothing to do with 
the original question.  Members felt that a supplementary question could be asked 
but only in respect of the original question, that did not mean asking the same 
question again, but to seek clarity in respect of the answer given.  Members agreed 
that a supplementary question could be asked, but wording around this needed to 
be tight and it had to be relevant to the answer received to the original question. 
 
It was agreed that the wording in the previous version of the Constitution would be 
sufficient. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED. 
 
Recommendation to Council  

 
That supplementary questions in respect of the Public Open Forum at 
Council be allowed, but the supplementary question had to be relevant to the 
answer received to the original question asked. 
 
Amendment 2: Points of Information  
 
Delete paragraph 14.5 (f) “On a point of information” and delete paragraph 14.26 
“Point of information”. 
 
The Member proposing the amendment stated that this was a new rule and had not 
been part of the previous Constitution. It was felt that the rule gave Members the 
opportunity to interrupt the flow of another speaker and it was difficult for a 
chairman to adjudicate, could be seen as subjective.  The Chairman of the 
Committee stated that points of information should be facts not opinions. 
 
It was stated that the wording “points of information” was standard wording and 
taken from the Local Government Act 2000’s Model Constitution.   
 
Councillor Baxter proposed his amendment which did not receive a seconder. 
 

9



 

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED to leave the wording as currently shown 
in the Constitution. 
 
Recommendation to Council  
 
That no change is made in respect of Points of information paragraph 14.5 (f) 
or paragraph 14.26 in the Council Procedure Rules. 
 
Councillor Baxter asked for his vote against the recommendation to be recorded. 
 
The Chairman of the Committee indicated that this issue was something that could 
perhaps be looked at by the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen group when they met.   
 
Amendment 3: Cabinet Procedure Rules  
 
Delete paragraph 22.2 and re-Insert at 22.2 “Members attending as observers may 
speak and ask the relevant Cabinet Member questions on any item on the agenda”. 
(Fragment from the previous Constitution at paragraph 8.5.7). Delete paragraph 7.2 
“…at the discretion of the Leader, or person presiding the meeting, but the same 
provision must be available for all Councillors in attendance for the respective item.” 
and replace with “and ask the relevant Cabinet Member questions on any item(s) 
on the agenda”.  

 
Councillor Baxter who had proposed the amendment stated that this was a new rule 
which restricted non-Cabinet Members from asking questions at Cabinet. 
 
The Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer stated that the 
changes had been made to provide Chairmen of all Committees with the ability to 
better manage their meetings.  Previously each Committee had dealt with non-
Committee Members speaking at meetings differently and the changes had given 
uniformity across every Committee including Cabinet. 
 
The Chairman of the Committee felt that this was another issue that could 
potentially be discussed by the informal Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen group. 
 
The amendment was proposed but did not receive a seconder. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED that no change was made to the current 
wording within the Constitution in relation to paragraph 22.2 of the Cabinet 
Procedure Rules. 
 
Recommendation to Council  
 
That no change is made to the current wording within the Constitution in 
relation to paragraph 22.2 of the Cabinet Procedure Rules. 

 
Councillor Baxter asked for his vote against the recommendation to be recorded. 
 
 
 

10



 

Amendment 4: Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
 
Delete paragraph 4.4 
 
It was stated that this was a new rule which allowed Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Chairman to defer a request for an agenda item to the subsequent 
meeting.  It was felt that a decision to defer should not be made without reference 
to the Member(s) who requested the agenda item.  Reference was then made to 
the recently postponed Companies Committee which the Member felt had plenty of 
business to discuss.  It was noted that the amendment before the Committee was in 
respect of Overview and Scrutiny Committees only. 

 
A discussion followed with examples of items being taken off or cancelled at short 
notice.  It was stated that the rule was to enable Chairman to manage the work 
programmes of their Overview and Scrutiny Committees.  If Members needed an 
urgent item raising, they should contact the Chairman of the relevant Committee.  A 
request for an item even a deferred item should appear on the Committee’s work 
programme. 
 
The amendment was proposed but did not receive a seconder. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED that the wording remain as currently 
shown in the Constitution. 
 
Recommendation to Council 
 
That no change be made to the wording at paragraph 4.4 of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules. 
 
Amendment 5: Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
 
Insert into paragraph 4.5 “Between meetings, changes to….”  The proposed 
amendment clarified a potential contradiction with paragraph 4.1 (j). 
 
Members were happy with the proposed amendment which was seconded and on 
being put to the vote AGREED. 

 
Recommendation to Council 
 
That the following wording be inserted into paragraph 4.5 “Between 
meetings, changes to…..” of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules so 
that it now reads:  
 
Between meetings, changes to the work programme for the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees will be determined by the Chairman of each Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 
 
 

11



 

Amendment 6: Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 
 
Delete paragraph 5.3 and replace with “and ask questions on any item(s) on the 
agenda”. 
 
The new rule required members of the public to register to speak and submit their 
questions in advance of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
The Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer stated that the 
rule had been added to give unity across Committees. If a member of the public 
wished to speak at planning or licensing, they had to give notice therefore the same 
provision should also be applied to the Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 
 
The amendment was proposed by Councillor Baxter but did not receive a seconder.  
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED that no amendment was made to 
paragraph 5.3 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules. 
 
Recommendation to Council 

 
That no amendment is made to paragraph 5.3 of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules. 
Amendment 7: Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules  
 
Paragraph 6.4, delete “…at the discretion of the Chairman, or person presiding the 
meeting, but the same provision must be available for all Councillors in attendance 
for the respective item.” 
 
The proposed amendment would allow for non-Cabinet Members and non-
Committee Members to ask questions at Overview and Scrutiny Committees.  
 
Paragraph 6.4 allowed the Chairmen of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees to 
manage the meeting more effectively, sometimes it was not clear who Members of 
the Committee were and it allowed for a more structured meeting to deal with the 
items of business on the agenda.  The rule provided Chairmen with a clear ability to 
manage meetings. 

 
The Member proposing the amendment felt that the chairing of a meeting was down 
to the skills of the Chairman.  The proposal did not receive a seconder. 
 
The Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer stated that 
training of Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen had recently taken place. Procedure Rules 
provided uniformity across the board so that meetings could be effectively chaired. 
 
It was proposed that no amendment was required to Paragraph 6.4 of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, this was seconded and on being put to the vote 
AGREED. 
 
 
 

12



 

Recommendation to Council 
 

That no amendment was required to Paragraph 6.4 of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules. 

 
6. Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

A question was asked about the Scrutiny Review and the Chairman stated that it 
would be coming to the next meeting of the Committee.  

 
7. Close of meeting 

 
The meeting closed at 1:05pm. 

 
 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Constitution 
Committee 
 
 

17 October 2022 
 
Report by Councillor Linda Wootten, 
Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Governance and Licensing 
 
 

 

 

Honorary Alderman and Alderwoman Protocol 
 

Report Author 

Graham Watts (Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer) 

 graham.watts@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

This report provides the Constitution Committee with an opportunity to consider a draft 

protocol for the appointment of Honorary Aldermen and Alderwomen – a clear process 

for bestowing such an honour.  

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the draft Honorary Alderman and Alderwoman Protocol, as set out in the 
report and Appendix 1, be recommended to Full Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities? (delete as 
appropriate) 

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? N/A 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this report.  The costs 

associated with delivering the protocol can be met from existing budgets.  

 

Completed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of Finance 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 The protocol set out in this report would need to be recommended to Full Council 

for adoption.  

 

Completed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

 

2. Key Considerations 
 

2.1 The attached draft protocol outlines the proposed procedure for the appointment 

of Honorary Aldermen and Alderwomen.  

 

2.2 It is proposed that certain criteria must be met for a nomination to be considered 

valid, as set out in the protocol. 

 

2.3  The nomination must be submitted by any serving member of Council within a 

 five-year period of a Member’s last day in office at the Council. 

 

 

16



2.4  If the request is valid, the Chief Executive will instruct the establishment of an 

 Honours Working Group in consultation with the Monitoring Officer. The Honours 

 Working Group will consist of the Leader of each political group and the current 

 Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council. The Chairman of the Honours 

 Working Group will be agreed by nomination at the meeting. 

 

2.5  Subject to meeting the qualification criteria as set out in the protocol, Full Council 

 would consider a recommendation from the Honours Working Group and would 

 determine whether a formal conferment ceremony should take place. 

 

2.6  Honorary Aldermen and Alderwomen would have no entitlement to any 

 allowances as part of their role and would not have the right to influence 

 committee meetings nor have any voting rights.  
 

2.7  The Constitution Committee is asked to comment on the draft protocol, suggest 

 any changes and recommend it to Full Council for adoption. 

 

3. Appendices 
 

3.1 Appendix 1 – Draft Nomination Procedure for appointment of Honorary Alderman 

and Honorary Alderwoman.  

 

 

 

17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Nomination Procedure for appointment of Honorary Alderman and Honorary 

Alderwoman 

Background 

 

1. In accordance with the provisions of Section 249 of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the Council may confer the title of Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman on: 

 
"Persons who have, in the opinion of the Council, rendered eminent services to the 
Council as past Members of that Council, but who are not then Members of the 
Council." 

 
2. The position of Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman is non-political.  There 

must be support for the nomination by the majority of Councillors voting at a Council 
meeting. 

 
3.  Nominations for Honorary Aldermen or Honorary Alderwomen may be made by any 

serving Member of South Kesteven District Council only by way of a letter or email to 

the Council's Chief Executive and only once a Member has ceased to be a Member of 

the Council.  

 
The letter or email must set out the reasons for the nomination being made. Certain 

criteria must be met as set out in the qualification criteria below.  

 

4. Nominations for Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman may be submitted by 

any serving Member of the Council within a five-year period of a Member’s last day in 

office at the Council. No public nominations are accepted. 

 

5. Upon receipt of a valid request, the Chief Executive will instruct the establishment of 

an Honours Working Group in consultation with the Monitoring Officer.  

 

6. The Honours Working Group will consist of the Leader of each political group and the 

current Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council. The Chairman of the Honours 

Working Group will be agreed by nomination at the meeting. 

 

Qualification Criteria 

 

7. A former Member should have served a minimum of 12 years' service on the Council, 

which does not have to be consecutive. 

 

8. No person who meets the above qualification criteria will automatically become an 

Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman.  A nomination must still be submitted 

for the Honours Working Group to consider the request. 

 

 

19

Appendix 1



 

Nomination and Enrolment 

 

9. Each nomination considered by the Honours Working Group shall be made in 

consultation with the Council's Monitoring Officer. Upon determination of any 

nomination for Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman the Honours Working 

Group shall advise Full Council of its recommendations. Full Council will consider the 

recommendation and determine if a formal conferment ceremony should take place. 

 

10.   If so determined, the Monitoring Officer will arrange for a conferment ceremony to be 

held. 

 

Rights of an Honorary Alderman/Honorary Alderwoman 

 

11.   An Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman shall be entitled to the following 

privileges: 

 

- To enjoy the courtesy of title of Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman and 

to be addressed as such. 

 

- To be named as an Honorary Alderman/Honorary Alderwoman on the Council's 

website. 

 

- To attend, as an observer, meetings of the Council for which a seat will be 

reserved. 

 

- To attend civic and social events by invitation and to which Members of the 

Council are invited, and at the discretion of the Council. 

 

- To walk in civic procession, as invited by the Council. 

 

12.   There is no entitlement to any allowances as an Honorary Alderman or Honorary 

Alderwoman. 

 

13.   Honorary Aldermen and Honorary Alderwomen shall not have the right to influence 

meetings of the Council or its Committees nor have any voting rights whatsoever. 

 

Withdrawal of the Title 

 

The title of Honorary Alderman or Honorary Alderwoman may be removed and privileges 

may be withdrawn at any time if the behaviour of an individual may affect the reputation of 

the Council. 

 

The removal must be agreed by the majority of Full Council on the recommendation of the 

Monitoring Officer.  

20



 
 

       

Constitution 
Committee 
 
 

17 October 2022 
 
Report by Councillor Linda Wootten, 
Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Governance and Licensing 
 

 

 

Proposed amendment to the Planning Procedure 

Rules and any other amendments to the 

Council’s Constitution  
 

Report Author 

James Welbourn (Democratic Services Manager) 

 james.welbourn@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

This report provides the Constitution Committee with an opportunity to consider revisions 

to the Council’s Constitution. 

 

 

Recommendations 

 

1.That consideration be given to the proposed amendment to the Planning 
Procedure Rules, as set out in the report and determine whether it be 
recommended to Full Council. 

2. Members are invited to suggest further amendments to the Constitution for 
consideration. 

 

 

 

 

21

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities? 

 

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All or insert specific ward(s) 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

 

Completed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of Finance 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 Any amendments to the Council’s Constitution set out in this report would need to 

be recommended to Full Council for adoption. 

 

Completed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  During debate at the Full Council meeting on 26 May 2022, Councillor Richard 

Cleaver circulated and proposed an amendment to the Planning Procedure Rules 

as set out in Part 4 of the new Constitution. The amendment read as follows: 

 

 Insert a new paragraph to define the relevant ward Councillor as ‘those wards 

which fall inside or adjacent to the boundary of the planning application in 

question’ 

 

2.2 The Constitution Committee at its meeting on 18 July 2022 considered the above 

amendment to the Constitution and agreed to formally submit it to Full Council for 

adoption. 

22



 

2.3 Full Council at its meeting on 25 July 2022 considered several amendments to the 

Constitution, including the proposed new wording for the ‘relevant ward councillor.’ 

This proposal was deferred back to the Constitution Committee to re-consider the 

proposed wording in the context of the content of the Local Code of Practice for 

the Planning Committee. 

 

2.4 The wording of the minute from Full Council on 25 July was as follows: 

 

 “It was proposed and seconded that a new paragraph be added under section 6 of 

the Planning Procedure Rules as follows:   

 

“The relevant Ward Councillor is defined as a Councillor representing those wards 

which fall inside or adjacent to the planning application”.   

 

This proposal related to the definition of ‘relevant Ward Councillor’ in respect of 

those Councillors entitled to speak during consideration of a planning application 

at the Planning Committee.   

 

The following points were noted during debate of the motion:   

• Clarity was sought regarding the proposed wording and whether under the 

proposition a Councillor from an adjoining electoral ward to that of the site of an 

application would be entitled to speak as a relevant Ward Councillor. This was 

confirmed as being correct.   

• Clarification was provided that the proposal related solely to the public speaking 

element of consideration of a planning application at the Planning Committee and 

was separate to the provision set out elsewhere in the Constitution regarding a 

Ward Councillor’s right to ‘call-in’ an application to the Planning Committee   

• Any Councillor had the right to request to speak at the Planning Committee 

through Chairman’s discretion     

 

A procedural motion to defer this motion to the Constitution Committee was 

proposed and seconded. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Planning 

Committee would be invited to attend the meeting and the proposed wording could 

be re-considered in the context of the content of the Local Code of Practice for the 

Planning Committee. Upon being put to the vote the procedural motion was 

AGREED.” 

 

 

3. Key Considerations 

 

3.1 Members are asked to consider whether they would recommend the above 

definition of ‘relevant ward Councillor’. 

 

23



3.2 Members are also asked whether they have any further amendments to the 

Constitution that they wish to discuss, and potentially recommend, to the meeting 

of Full Council scheduled for 24 November 2022. 

 

4 Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 Determine to make a recommendation to Full Council on amendments to the 

Constitution. 

4.2 Determine not to make any recommendations to Full Council on amendments to 

the Constitution. 

 

5 Attachments 
 

5.1 Appendix A - Planning Local Code of Good Practice 

 

 

 

24



 

Part 5 – Codes and Protocols 
Page 1 

 

  

Guidance For Members and Officers Dealing 

with Planning Matters 

 

A Local Code of Good Practice 

 

 

25

Appendix A



 

 Part 5 – Codes and Protocols 
Page 2 

 

POSITIVE ENGAGEMENT: A GUIDE FOR COUNCILLORS INVOLVED IN MAKING 

PLANNING DECISIONS - GOOD PRACTICE GUIDANCE NOTE  

SUMMARY  

Councillors can involve themselves in discussions with developers, their constituents and 

others about planning matters. Difficulties can be avoided if you follow these useful general 

hints.  

Do  

• involve officers and structure discussions with developers  

• inform officers about any approaches made to you and seek advice  

• familiarise yourself with the Code of Conduct and follow it when you are representing the 

Council  

• keep your register of interests up to date 

• be aware of what fairness and impartiality mean in your role  

• be prepared to hold discussions with an applicant and officers before a planning 

application is made, not just after it has been submitted  

• preface any discussion with disclaimers; keep a note of important meetings and calls; and 

make clear at the outset that discussions are not binding  

• be aware of what Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, personal and prejudicial interests are – 

refer to the Monitoring Officer or the Code of Conduct if you are unsure  

• recognise the distinction between giving advice and engaging in negotiation and when this 

is appropriate in your role  

• stick to policies included in adopted plans, but also pay heed to any other considerations 

relevant to planning  

• use meetings to show leadership and vision  

• encourage positive outcomes  

• recognise that you can lobby and campaign but that this may remove you from the decision 

making process  

• feed in both your own and your local community’s concerns and issues  

• be aware that you can engage in discussions, but you must have and be seen to have an 

open mind at the point of decision making.  

Do not  

• use your position improperly for personal gain or to advantage your friends or close 

associates  

• meet developers alone or put yourself in a position where you appear to favour a person, 

company or group – even a ‘friendly’ private discussion with a developer could cause 

others to mistrust your impartiality.  

• attend meetings or be involved in decision-making where you have a Disclosable 

Pecuniary Interest or a prejudicial interest – except when speaking where the general 

public are also allowed to do so  

• accept gifts or hospitality  

• prejudge or be seen to prejudge an issue if you want to be a decision maker on a proposal  

• seek to influence officers or put pressure on them to support a particular course of action 

in relation to a planning application  

• compromise the impartiality of people who work for the Council 

• invent local guides or policies 

 

 

26



 

 Part 5 – Codes and Protocols 
Page 3 

 

1. Introduction  

This Protocol sets out the practices and procedures that Members and Officers at 

South Kesteven District Council should follow when determining planning applications. 

2. Basic Principles 

The basis of the planning system is to manage development in the public interest.  

Planning is often very contentious because planning decisions affect the private 

interests of individuals, landowners and developers. Decisions are taken based on 

informed judgement with a firm policy basis.  

The Planning process relies on transparency in decision making and Officers and 

Members must act fairly and with integrity.  

Development proposals that are policy compliant should be approved without delay. 

Members have a duty to represent their constituents but also an overriding duty to the 

wider community.   

3. The role of the Planning Committee 

The role of a Planning Committee is to determine major or more complex applications 

that raise issues of more than immediate local importance.  The intention is to allow 

Councillors to focus on applications needing additional scrutiny where added Member 

value in balancing conflicting pressures is important. This of course does not mean 

that minor applications cannot be referred to Committee where they raise issues of 

more than local importance. 

Councillors are encouraged to engage with the planning process early, and often many 

issues can be resolved without applications needing to be referred to Committee for a 

decision.  For example, by raising issues early it may be possible to address concerns 

through amendments, additional information and/or planning conditions. 

Referral to Planning Committee shouldn’t be used to arbitrate between competing 

interest groups or to put off making difficult decisions.  Applications should not normally 

be referred to Planning Committee simply to allow an objector/applicant an opportunity 

to air their views in a public forum. 

Householder or very minor applications should not normally be referred to Planning 

Committee and it is expected that Councillors will work with Officers to resolve any 

concerns arising from the proposal.  

4. Your Role as a Member of the Planning Authority 

 

To make planning decisions openly, impartially and with sound judgement for justifiable 

reasons.  

 

5. Relationship to the Members’ Code of Conduct 

 

Do apply the rules within the Members’ Code of Conduct first as these must always be 

complied with. 

 

 

27



 

 Part 5 – Codes and Protocols 
Page 4 

 

The guidance in this note seeks to explain and supplement the Members’ Code of 

Conduct for the purposes of the Planning system. If you do not abide by this Code of 

Local Practice you may not necessarily have breached the Members’ Code of Conduct 

but you may put the Council at risk of proceedings regarding legality or 

maladministration of the related decision.  

 

6. Development Proposals and Interests under the Members’ Code of Conduct 

 

Members should declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) in accordance with 

the Council’s Code of Conduct. These should be declared at the beginning of the 

meeting and not at the start of the discussion on any particular matter. However, if you 

become aware of a DPI after the start of the meeting you should declare it as soon as 

possible.  

 

Where you have a DPI you should not participate, or give the appearance of trying to 

participate in the decision making process.   

 

The Monitoring Officer will be able to provide you with any specific guidance or discuss 

any particular concerns with you ahead of any meeting.  

 

7. Fettering Discretion in the Planning Process 

 

Members making a decision on any planning application as part of the Planning 

Committee must ensure that they have not already fettered their discretion.  This means 

that you should come to any Planning Committee meeting with an open mind.  Whilst 

you should familiarise yourself with the application and the reports ahead of the 

Committee, it is important that you haven’t made your mind up on how you will vote at 

the meeting of the Planning Committee (or Full Council) until you have heard the 

Officer’s presentation and all of the evidence and arguments on both sides.  

 

If you have fettered your discretion, it is important that you do not speak and vote on a 

proposal.   

 

The Monitoring Officer will be able to provide you with any specific guidance or discuss 

any particular concerns with you ahead of any meeting.  

 

8. Lobbying of Councillors 

Lobbying is a normal and perfectly proper part of the political process and those who 

may be affected by a proposal will often seek to influence the decision by approaching 

their local Councillors or Members of the Planning Committee.  

Members of the Planning Committee are free to listen to any point of view about a 

particular planning application, however they should avoid expressing an opinion which 

may indicate that they or the authority has reached a final conclusion until all of the 

relevant arguments and evidence has been put before the Planning Committee.  

Advice to the public should be restricted to procedural matters, including making the 

relevant Officer aware so that material opinions can be reflected in the report. 

 

 

28



 

 Part 5 – Codes and Protocols 
Page 5 

 

 Where a member of the Planning Committee goes on record in support of a particular 

outcome, or campaign actively for it, it will be difficult for that member to argue 

convincingly that they have attended the Committee with an open mind.  If there is an 

appearance of bias or pre-determination then the decision may be vulnerable to a 

challenge by way of a Judicial Review.   

9. Lobbying by Councillors 

Members will be able to speak on behalf of a body of opinion, however the Committee 

should be made aware as to such opinion as distinct from personal views. 

There should be no party-political grouping on how to vote on applications prior to a 

Planning Committee meeting, or similar voting because an application is moved by a 

member of the same party. 

Members should not lobby or trade with other Committee Members for a particular 

outcome. 

Whilst a Member can speak on behalf of a body of opinion, they should not personally 

be involved in organising support for or against that opinion. 

Members not serving on the Planning Committee may speak to the Committee in 

accordance with Standing Orders, however, the Member attending shall not take part 

in the voting on any item.  

10. Public Speaking at Meetings 

Any member of the public, Parish or Town Council has the right to speak in accordance 

with the public speaking rules set out in the Planning Procedure Rules at Part 4 of the 

Constitution. Their views, insofar as they are material planning considerations, should 

be taken account of with other available information and evidence.   

11. Decision Making 

Members should determine applications in accordance with advice given, including 

verbal updates to reports, unless they have good planning reasons to the contrary and 

in the knowledge of all the available information and evidence. 

Decisions on planning applications have to be taken in accordance with the 

Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  In determining 

any application the Committee is not bound by the recommendation of their officers.  

This means that the Committee is entitled to decide the weight to be attached to the 

various planning considerations that are relevant to the applications. This can 

sometimes result in a decision which is contrary to the recommendation of Officers (an 

Overturn).   

For example, the Committee could decide any of the following: 

• To refuse planning permission where Officers have recommended approval; 

• To approve planning permission where Officers have recommended refusal; 

• Agree with Officers that planning permission should be refused but for different 

reasons; or 

• Grant permission subject to different conditions or legal requirements to those 

recommended.  

29



 

 Part 5 – Codes and Protocols 
Page 6 

 

Where Members wish to determine an application contrary to the recommendation, 

they should indicate the material reason(s) for doing so at the meeting and these will 

be detailed in the minutes to the meeting. Where a motion is put forward that is contrary 

to the Officer recommendation, the Chairman will ensure that the planning reasons for 

reaching this motion are clear. 

If the Committee is minded to make a decision contrary to the recommendation, the 

relevant Officer (including Legal) will be given the opportunity to outline the implications 

for the Committee of such a decision. 

If the Committee wish to add or amend conditions, an Officer will be invited to draft 

such a condition. A detailed minute of the reasons for the Committee’s action should 

be made.   

Where a motion is proposed and seconded for a decision that would differ from the 

Officer’s recommendation it is important that the Members voting for that motion are 

clear what it is.  For example, in the case of an overturn where the motion is to refuse 

an application recommended for approval, Members must be clear as to the reasons 

for refusal. This means that Members are clear as to the substance of the reason(s) 

for refusal including the policies that the proposal is contrary to. If Members are not 

clear they should ask for clarification before voting. 

Officers may make slight amendments to the wording of any new reasons for refusal 

or conditions following Committee although they will not alter their meaning. 

Members should not vote on a proposal unless they have been present to hear the 

entire debate including the Officer’s introduction and presentation on the application.  

Minutes will relate to the planning reasons for the decision specifically whether: 

•    It is in accordance with development plan policies, or 

•    Other material considerations indicate otherwise (and what they are) 

•   In the case of an approval, the relevant matters to be addressed by planning 

  conditions 

12. Training 

As set out in the Constitution, Councillors can only sit on the Planning Committee 

where they have received the mandatory training.  

Officers will ensure that annual training is provided and this will be available to all 

Councillors; it is each Councillor’s individual responsibility to ensure that they attend 

this training.   

In addition to the annual mandatory training session Officers will provide other training 

sessions throughout the year on a variety of topics.  Members are encouraged to attend 

as many of these training sessions as possible.   

Members are encouraged to identify any topics that they would like to have training on.  

Annually, the Committee will visit a sample of implemented permissions to assess the 

quality of those decisions. These will take place at six monthly intervals. 

The outcome of appeals will be reviewed by Planning Committee at six monthly 

intervals to outline feedback and lessons learned. 

30



 

 Part 5 – Codes and Protocols 
Page 7 

 

13. Process 

All Members will be notified by email of individual applications within their wards.  

Where an application site straddles a ward boundary, Councillors from all of the wards 

concerned will be notified.  Where a site is located adjacent to the boundary of a ward, 

the adjoining ward Councillors will be notified. 

All Councillors will continue to receive the weekly list setting out applications validated 

by the Council.  Members will also receive updates relating to enforcement cases 

where it has been established that there is a breach of planning control. 

Members are encouraged to view the plans online and contact the Case Officer if there 

are any queries or matters they wish to discuss. 

Officers are encouraged to contact Councillors where they feel that a matter may be 

contentious and this should be done as soon as possible in the process.  

If a ward Councillor or adjoining ward Councillor wishes any application to be 

considered by the Planning Committee they should advise the Case Officer in writing 

and clearly state the planning issues that give them concern. The Councillor making 

this request must also demonstrate that the proposal would have such a prejudicial 

impact or effect on the area of district or its residents to warrant determination by 

Planning Committee. This should be done as soon as possible and within 21 days of 

first being notified of the receipt of the application.  

Where any Councillor considers that an application not in their ward or adjoining their 

ward should be referred to the Planning Committee for a decision, that Councillor 

should first discuss this matter with the ward Councillor(s).  If the ward Councillor(s) 

doesn’t respond or disagrees with the request, then the matter can be escalated to the 

Chairman/Vice-Chairman of the Planning Committee however it must be demonstrated 

that the initial discussion has taken place along with the reasons for the escalation and 

any response from the ward Councillor(s). 

It is understood that sometimes there may be extenuating circumstances where it was 

not possible to make a request to call an application to Committee within the initial 21 

day notification period.  For example this could be due to additional information coming 

to light after the notification period.  If this is the case Councillors should submit their 

request in writing providing the reasons for the late request along with the planning 

reasons for the call-in.  The request will need to be agreed with the Chairman and Vice-

Chairman of the Committee in consultation with the Assistant Director of Planning; if 

they disagree with the call-in request the Member will be informed.  Councillors are 

however encouraged to make any request to call an application to Committee as soon 

as possible to avoid unnecessary delays in the determination of applications. 

Where a request for an application to be considered by the Planning Committee is 

agreed by the Chairman of the Planning Committee then the reason given for the 

referral will be included in the report.  

Where a request for Committee referral is not agreed with, the ward Councillor(s) 

making the request will be informed.  

It is expected that if the concerns that gave rise to the Committee referral request are 

addressed through amendments to the application or conditions, the referral request 

will be withdrawn. 

31



 

 Part 5 – Codes and Protocols 
Page 8 

 

14. Reports to Committee 

The advice from the Courts and Ombudsman have determined Officer reports on 

planning applications must have regard to the following points:  

• reports should be accurate and cover, amongst other things, the substance of any 

objections and the views of those consulted; 

• relevant information should include a clear exposition of the development plan; site 

or related history; and any other material considerations;  

• reports should have a written recommendation of action. Oral reporting (except to 

update a report) should be avoided and carefully minuted when it does occur;  

• reports should contain technical appraisals which clearly justify a recommendation;  

• if the report’s recommendation is contrary to the provisions of the development plan, 

the material considerations which justify the departure must be clearly stated. It is 

particularly important to do so, not only as a matter of good practice, but because 

failure may constitute maladministration, or give rise to judicial review on the 

grounds that the decision was not taken in accordance with the provisions of the 

development plan and the council’s statutory duty under s38A of the Planning and 

Compensation Act 2004 

 

15. Decisions contrary to Officer Recommendations and subsequent Appeals 

 

In determining planning applications, the Planning Committee is entitled to decide the 

weight to be attached to the various planning matters (benefits and harms) that are 

relevant to the application. This may lead to a decision that is different to the 

recommendation of the Officers. 

 

In these circumstances, it is essential that reasons for the difference of opinion are clear 

in the minds of the Committee Members.   

Where an appeal to the Secretary of State is subsequently lodged against a decision 

made contrary to the Officer’s recommendations, Planning Officers (and other Officers 

as appropriate) will normally act as professional witnesses to present the Council’s 

case at public inquiries and local hearings. However, where this would prejudice the 

outcome, the Assistant Director of Planning may ask Members to conduct the appeal1. 

In this instance the Planning Committee will need to be prepared to identify a 

Councillor(s) to support the case at a public inquiry or local hearing.  This would 

normally be the Councillors who proposed and seconded the reasons for the refusal. 

The Assistant Director of Planning and the planning team will support the Members in 

the preparation of the case as appropriate.  

16.  Site Visits 

 

Members can make site visits. However, they must avoid contact with the 

applicants/objectors and maintain probity during the process of determination. 

Members will decline invitations from developers to attend private site visits where 

additional information may be presented prior to Committee. 

 

 
1 In public inquiries Officers can only give evidence based upon their professional beliefs.  The Royal Town 
Planning Institute (RTPI) Code of Conduct does not allow its members to make or subscribe to any statements 
or reports that are contrary to their own bona fide professional opinions.  

32



 

 Part 5 – Codes and Protocols 
Page 9 

 

Health and Safety & Lone Working considerations are the responsibility of the Member. 

Members do not have rights of access upon private land and such visits must be 

undertaken from the public highway or via public rights of way. 

 

Ward Members and/or members of the Planning Committee will be able to request a 

site visit for any application that is being referred to Planning Committee for a decision. 

If any other Councillor considers that a site visit should be carried out, they should 

discuss this with the Ward Councillor and the Chairman/Vice-Chairman of the Planning 

Committee.  Councillors should give reasons for the site visit so that Officers and 

Councillors are clear what elements of a proposal or site need to be viewed.  Where a 

request is made, site visits will be agreed for inclusion by the Assistant Director of 

Planning in consultation with the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Planning 

Committee; site visits will take place where it is clear that the visit will add value to the 

consideration of the application. 

 

Site visits will be led by a Council Officer who will explain the proposals in the context 

of the site.  They will also explain the reasons why the site visit has been called. 

 

Any third party at the site visit including the applicant will not be permitted to address 

Councillors.  On occasion, it might be necessary to ask a point of clarification or fact of 

a third party however this will be at the Lead Officer or Chairman’s discretion.   

 

Details of the site visit including who attended will be recorded by the lead Officer in 

attendance.  

 

The purpose of the site visit is to establish facts about the site and its surroundings.  No 

decisions will be made at the site visit. 

 

Ideally site visits should be requested pre-committee to avoid delays in the decision-

making process. However, the Committee may resolve that a decision is deferred 

pending a Member site visit. This must be moved and voted upon in the usual way 

during Planning Committee at any time after the Officer’s presentation.  The reasons 

for the site visit must be established and clearly recorded in the minutes.  

 

 

33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2022
	5 Honorary Alderman and Alderwoman Protocol
	Draft SKDC Protocol - Aldermen

	6 Proposed amendment to the Planning Procedure Rules and any other amendments to the Council’s Constitution
	Constitutional Amendments Appendix 1 - Planning Code of Practice


